
 

1 
 

Brazosport College 

Request for Proposals (RFP) 

RFP 2022.04 Website Content Management System 

 

DATE ISSUED: Friday, September 16, 2022 

 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE: Sealed proposals for Website Content Management Systems will be received 

until October 13, 2022 @ 2:00 p.m. Failure to submit proposals to the correct location by the designated 

date and hour will result in disqualification. Brazosport College reserves the right to reject any and all 

proposals and to waive any irregularities. Brazosport College does not accept late or misdirected 

proposals. 

 

APPLICATION PROCESS & PROCEDURES: Please provide three (3) original and complete bound 

proposals in response to this Request for Proposal. Proposals should be sent as per the Proposal Due Date 

and Proposal Delivery instructions and should include: 

1. A brief Executive Summary 

2. A clear explanation of how the vendor will address the Scope of Work for Brazosport College. 

3. A list of project deliverables to be created with a detailed timeline for each deliverable and 

overall project completion. 

4. A detailed budget that provides the total cost and breakdown of all expenses per deliverable, 

including travel definitions, miscellaneous expenses, etc. 

5. A description of the vendor’s relevant experience with small campuses and two-year public 

colleges. 

6. Mandatory RFP Vendor Questionnaire  

7. Three (3) client references for which services of a comparable nature, scope, and complexity have 

been completed by the vendor. References must be for services performed in the name of the 

company submitting the RFP; work performed by vendor employees, subcontractors, or 

representatives while engaged by another company does not qualify as an acceptable reference. 

Projects for client references should have occurred within the last three (3) years. References 

from Higher Education Institutions are preferred. 

8. Requirements, Certifications, and Affidavits: Provide the following: 

a. Proof of insurance (general liability, automotive liability, etc.) 

b. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ) 

c. Felony Conviction Notice 

d. House Bill 89 verification form  

e. Brazosport College Marketing and Communications Addendum to Agreement 

 

Information and documents regarding this Request for Proposal can be found on the Brazosport College 

website at https://brazosport.edu/faculty-and-staff/employee-services/business-services/purchasing/ 

 

 

https://brazosport.edu/faculty-and-staff/employee-services/business-services/purchasing/
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PROPOSAL DELIVERY: Clearly reference the due date, hour, and RFP name on the sealed envelope. 

Sealed proposals should be mailed, or hand delivered to: 

Brazosport College 

Cara Green, Procurement Specialist 

RFP: 2022.04 Website Content Management System 

500 College Drive, C-127 

Lake Jackson, Texas 77566 

* Brazosport College will not accept electronic versions of proposals. They must be mailed, or hand-

delivered. We are not responsible for any US mail delays and will not take any proposals received after 

the due date and time. 

**Please note that Brazosport College will not return any proposals it receives and will not reimburse 

applicants for any costs they incur in developing their proposals. 

QUESTIONS: All inquiries for information regarding this solicitation should be directed in writing to: 

Cara Green, Procurement Specialist, at cara.green@brazosport.edu. Any attempts to contact Brazosport 

College personnel outside of this may result in disqualification. 

AMENDMENTS TO THE PROPOSAL: If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this proposal 

package or if additional information is necessary to clarify any provision(s), the revision and/or additional 

information will be provided to the vendor via email and/or posted on the Brazosport College website.  

INCURRED EXPENSES: Brazosport College shall not be responsible for expenses incurred by a 

vendor in the preparation and submission of a proposal. This provision also includes any costs involved in 

preparing an oral presentation of the proposal.  

OPEN RECORDS: The College is a public entity subject to the provisions of the Texas Public 

Information Act (Texas Government Code Section 552). Responses to the RFP are subject to release as 

public information unless specific parts of the response are excepted from public disclosure under the Act. 

The vendor must stamp in bold red letters the term “CONFIDENTIAL” or “PROPRIETARY” on every 

page the vendor claims should be considered as such. Vendors will be deemed to have knowledge of this 

law and an understanding of how it affects their proposal.  

INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS 

INTRODUCTION: The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to solicit proposals from vendors 

with experience in higher education for the development of the Brazosport College website on a new 

content management system (CMS) or digital experience platform (DXP). Website development includes 

coding pre-designed templates and widgets into the CMS or DXP, testing, and quality assurance. It also 

includes the migration of over 1,600 web pages to the new site once coding has been completed. 

 

KEY DATES: Brazosport College’s Vision 2025, Goal Three: Business, Community, and Campus 

Engagement, outlines that by 2025, the College will ensure ongoing and mutually beneficial collaboration 

with stakeholders, along with continued development of a healthy campus culture that exemplifies our 

Core Values. 
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Vision 2025 outlines this measurable objective that must be completed to successfully meet this goal: By 

October 2023, populate the redesigned Brazosport College website with content, complete quality control 

checking, and put the new website into production.  

INFORMATION ABOUT BRAZOSPORT COLLEGE 

BACKGROUND: Brazosport College, herein referred to as “College” is an undergraduate Community 

College that serves more than 4,200 students. Located on 156 acres of beautifully landscaped grounds in 

Lake Jackson, Texas, we have served as the college of choice for students in southern Brazoria County 

since 1968.  

The College offers four-year degree programs in Industrial Management and Health Services 

Management. The College also offers over 70 two-year degree and certificate options in a variety of 

career fields, as well as courses in major fields of study, which will transfer to four-year schools. The 

healthcare program at the College offers ADN and LVN opportunities.  

The College campus has expanded in recent years. Additions include the BASF Center for Process 

Technology, the Dow Academic Center, the Byron & Sandra Sadler Health Professions/ Science 

Complex, a new Student Pavilion, recently named the MEGlobal Student Pavilion, a revitalized library 

and, most recently, the BCPC Welding Technologies Lab and the Freeport LNG Crafts Academy. 

With its growth have come a variety of accolades. In 2012 and 2014, the Aspen Institute ranked the 

College among the top 10 community colleges in the nation. Other awards include Safest College 

Campus in Texas, as well as a Top 10 Beautiful Yet Affordable College Campus in the nation.  

The College’s continued commitment to student success drives initiatives to assist students in attaining 

their goals. Partnership programs between the college, community, and local industry leaders are steered 

by the College Foundation to help ensure student success. 

BRAZOSPORT COLLEGE WEBSITE: The College’s website is currently hosted and managed on the 

Percussion CM1 CMS platform. While the College has appreciated all Percussion has had to offer over 

the last eight years, an open-source CMS (what Percussion will become once commercial support ends in 

2023) requires heavy development support. The College needs a CMS that the selected vendor fully 

supports. 

The Brazosport College website is currently a 1,600+ page site with more than 1,000 assets (i.e., PDFs 

and images). The website averages about 2.2 million page views and 800,000 visits annually. The website 

currently has a 52% bounce rate. This is normal as students use the website as the main gateway to 

software such as our online learning management system and student information system. 

Governance Structure: The governance structure is currently a centralized model with over 100 users 

contributing to the website. The Webmaster reviews all pages submitted for approval and publishing. 

According to College policy, each department must clearly define specific site maintenance duties and 

assign them to appropriate department personnel (excluding student workers). 
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PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

PROJECT OVERVIEW: In order to meet the goal set forth in Vision 2025, the College’s Strategic 5-

year plan, we understand that this project must yield more than a new design. It is expected that this 

project will require reworking content, and site architecture and may require changes to internal policies 

and procedures. This project is anticipated to accomplish the three following priorities: 

 

Priority 1: Site Functionality  

 

• Effectively communicate with prospective and current students—with the overall goal of 

increasing student enrollment. 

• Engage alumni and community members in ongoing relationships with the College. 

• Increase awareness of the College’s mission and programs available. 

• Seamlessly integrate with other campus systems to optimize processes for admission, financial 

aid, and registration for current and prospective students. 

• Increase participation in College-sponsored campus events. 

 

Priority 2: Accessibility  

 

• Ensure compliance with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act. 

• Ensure compliance with the Website Accessibility Initiative’s Web Content Accessibility 

Guidelines (WCAG). 

• Improve search engine ranking, website performance, and site usage.  

• Ensure access to users through traditional web browsers, mobile, tablet, and alternative devices. 

 

Priority 3: Ability to Easily Customize Individual Pages 

 

• Utilize CMS to ensure departments have the ability to customize pages to meet the needs of their 

students. All while ensuring pages adhere to overall style and branding. 

• Ensure scalable architecture for ease of growth, maintenance, and change over time. 

 

SERVICES OVERVIEW: 

 

1. Provide hosting services for the CMS and live website, providing all licensing and infrastructure 

necessary for end-users to access the services through any common-carrier internet provider. 

College data/information shall not be stored outside of the United States. 

2. Code and structure the College’s primary website, www.brazosport.edu, in the CMS following 

the design and architecture provided electronically as InDesign files and PDFs by the College 

Marketing and Communications Department. 

3. Recommend best practices for web governance procedures in new CMS. 

4. Provide the College with a fully functional website, meeting all identified specifications, that 

Brazosport College has complete ownership of with all necessary tools, access, and understanding 

to operate and manage the website independently. 

5. All Federal and State Law Regulations must be adhered to and incorporated into the site design as 

necessary. 
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REQUIRED CONTENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CMS) ELEMENTS: 

 

1. Search Engine Optimization (SEO): The CMS should have SEO features incorporated to best 

achieve organic search presence and site search functionality. 

2. Site Search: Comprehensive search feature that returns highly relevant results. 

3. Calendars: Must be user-friendly, clearly convey information, be filterable based on user interest, 

and be visually appealing. The calendar must provide various display styles for incorporating the 

calendar into different sections of the site in various ways. The calendar must be easy to use on 

the backend allowing novice users to add events, make edits and remove events with ease. 

4. Shared Assets Tool: Must have the ability to create and maintain shared assets (for example, PDF 

documents) that can be used throughout one or multiple site pages. 

5. Faculty and Staff Directory Module: Must have the ability to create a faculty and staff directory 

that can be filtered. It is preferred that the directory be updated via Microsoft’s Active Directory 

tool, but not required. 

6. Accessibility: The CMS must support the website in complying with Section 508 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794 (d)) and conform to applicable website 

accessibility guidelines as published in the Website Accessibility Initiative’s Web Content 

Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG).  

7. Site Security: Hosting services must comply with Texas Government Code 2054.0593 that 

mandates state agencies, as defined by Texas Government Code 2054.003(13), must only enter or 

renew contracts to receive cloud computing services that comply with TX-RAMP requirements. 

8. Language Translation: The CMS must support a global button in the menu header that allows 

visitors to translate all content into Spanish. This can be Google Translate but must be seamless 

and be a link on the pages to toggle between Spanish and English. 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT: The main project contacts will be the Brazosport College Webmaster and 

Director of Marketing and Communications. The selected vendor may be asked to meet with members of 

the College’s Website Committee throughout the redesign process. 

ANTICIPATED PROJECT TIMELINE: 

Tentative Project Dates and Anticipated Phases 

PHASE TITLE EXPECTED COMPLETION 

DATE 

1 Development Kick-Off Meeting October 2022 

2 Completion of Construction, Programming and Testing May 2023 

3 Completion of Content Migration August 2023 

4 Implementation and Final Testing September 2023 

5 Formal, Public Launch October 2023 

 

IMPLEMENTATION: 

 

1. Website development: 

a. Present content block modules in proposed page layouts. 

b. Buildout website pages in the CMS using content type blocks/modules and page 

templates, using existing content on the College website. 
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c. Migrate content for structured pages, such as newsroom articles, employee newsletter 

blogs, policies and procedures, and other pages that will be identified. 

2. Website testing: 

a. Perform thorough vendor and user testing within the staging environment. 

b. Perform thorough vendor and user testing after site launch to ensure the site is 

functioning properly and meeting expectations. 

3. Website launch and implementation: 

a. Transition site from the staging environment to public view. 

b. Troubleshoot and resolve any related problems. 

c. Site needs to function equally well on Chrome, Safari, Firefox, and Internet 

Explorer/Edge 

4. Website training and maintenance: 

a. Train web administrators 

 

Mandatory RFP Vendor Questionnaire 

The RFP Vendor Questionnaire shall be submitted as an attachment by the date and time deadline 

specified in this solicitation. Responses shall be included in the submission package, with a maximum of 

twenty (20) pages (numbered 1-20) dedicated to the questionnaire. Sections must be in the order of this 

RFP and clearly labeled as outlined below. List each question before your answer. 

Include a cover sheet titled “RFP VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE” that includes your organization’s name, 

representative's contact information, and RFP number and title. Coversheet does not count towards the 

20-page limit. 

The vendor shall provide all information in a clear and concise manner so as to allow the evaluation 

committee’s clear understanding of the firm's demonstrated competence and qualifications. Failure to 

provide the required information with the response may deem the vendor nonresponsive and disqualify 

the response from consideration for award. 

VENDOR INFORMATION 

1. What is the name of your product? 

2. Can you share your product vision? 

3. What is the key value proposition of your product? 

4. Can you list your two strongest competitors and what your key differentiators are? 

5. Do you have a product roadmap for the next few years? 

TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION 

1. Can you provide the system requirements for your solution for CMS end-users? 

2. Does your CMS provide support for the integration of systems such as Microsoft Azure Active 

Directory for SSO? 

3. Does the CMS integrate with web analytics platforms? Which ones does it support?  

4. Does your CMS integrate with third-party front-end applications? 

5. Can you provide details on your product versioning and release schedule? 
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CLOUD HOSTING VS. POTENTIAL OF ON-PREMISE/SELF-HOSTING 

1. Can you provide the system requirements (hardware, operating systems, servers, networks) for 

on-premise/self-hosting of the CMS and website? 

2. Do your services currently comply with TX-RAMP/StateRAMP/FedRAMP requirements when 

the CMS and website are hosted on the cloud? If so, what certification level? 

3. Can you provide the uptime rate and describe the stability of websites hosted on the cloud during 

events such as traffic spikes? 

4. What are the key differences in implementing CMS new releases, updates, and patches with on-

premise/self-hosting vs cloud hosting? 

a. Could you describe the update/upgrade process for the CMS?  

b. Are clients forced to update to your new version each time something changes? 

5. What is required from customers when implementing CMS new releases, updates, and patches 

with on-premise/self-hosting vs cloud hosting? (i.e., access to servers when hosted on-premise, 

required downtime of the live site when updates are being implemented, etc.) 

6. Do you currently have a disaster recovery plan or plans for system outages in place? 

PERSONALIZATION & CONTENT TARGETING INFORMATION 

1. Does your CMS offer a native personalization & content targeting engine? 

2. Does your CMS support the use of external data for personalization?  

3. Can marketers set rules for personas via the CMS backend?  

4. What traits/characteristics does your personalization offer out-of-the-box?  

CONTENT CREATION AND EDITING INFORMATION 

1. What capabilities does your product offer for editors who may have limited knowledge of 

coding? 

2. Does your CMS provide online (WYSIWYG) editing capabilities? 

3. Can you elaborate on the preview capabilities of your product, and do you offer a preview for 

device type, persona, scheduled content, and language at a minimum? 

4. Does the CMS give users the ability to create and maintain shared assets that they can use 

throughout one or multiple websites? 

5. Does your product offer search capabilities for editors? 

6. Does your CMS provide a full revision history of changes and allow you to roll back changes? 

7. Does your CMS support the editing of metadata by content contributors? 

8. Can you design and edit each element of your website using your CMS or do you need third-party 

tools? 

DIGITAL ASSET MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 

1. Does your CMS support the storage of rich media files (images, videos)?  

2. How much storage capacity is included in your offering?  

3. Can PDF files be associated with a workflow in your CMS? 

4. Can assets and their associated metadata be exported from your CMS? 

5. Can external assets be uploaded in batch? Via drag & drop or any other method? 
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SEARCH ENGINE OPTIMIZATION INFORMATION 

1. Can non-technical users add relevant SEO elements to each piece of content? 

2. Does the CMS tell you which pages lack critical SEO elements?  

3. Can editors manage redirects in the CMS UI? 

APPROVALS AND WORKFLOWS INFORMATION 

1. How are approval and publishing workflows configured? 

2. Can you create and customize workflows in an easy-to-use visual interface?  

3. Do your workflows include the ability to determine which users and roles have access to perform 

certain actions?  

4. Does the CMS support multiple workflows in multiple sites or sections of the website or app?  

5. How granular are your CMS’ workflows?  

6. Does your CMS automate notifications to users and roles?  

7. Does your CMS validate content and metadata, such as required fields or fields that only accept 

specific types of content?  

8. Does your CMS provide a content preview function so users can see the page's content before it 

gets approved?  

9. Can content be scheduled for publishing?  

IMPLEMENTATION INFORMATION 

1. Which processes do you follow to define both the site navigation and the information 

architecture?  

2. Can a non-technical user rearrange sections in a site?  

3. Does making changes to the site functionality require coding?  

4. Do you offer implementation services in-house or do you outsource it to a partner? 

SELECTION PROCESS: College staff will review proposals and make selections based on the 

information submitted. Submit additional specialty information as an attachment. Any submittal that fails 

to provide the required information as listed under the Application Process & Procedures will be 

automatically disqualified from the selection.  

SELECTION CRITERIA FOR WEBSITE CONTENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

Criteria and Weight   

Price/Fee Proposal (breakdown of pricing, travel, etc.)  25% 

Client References/Reputation of vendor and goods or services  10% 

Professional Qualifications/Quality of vendors goods and services  15% 

Functionality of Proposed Plan/Extent to which goods and services meet College’s 

needs  40% 

Extent to which the vendors proposal covers all requests as per RFP 5% 

Impact on ability of College to comply with laws and rules relating to 

HUBs/Location of business and employees  5% 



 

9 
 

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS: The College reserves the right to change the dates shown below upon 

written notification of such changes: 

EVENT: Date: 

Issue RFP Friday, September 16, 2022 

Deadline for submission of questions Wednesday, September 28, 2022 

Questions and answers will be posted on the College website Monday, October 3, 2022 

Deadline for submission of proposals Thursday, October 13, 2022 

Notification of shortlist for interview – optional  Monday, October 17, 2022 

Notice of selection and award TBD 

Contract Negotiations and execution by TBD 

Kick-off meeting October 2022 

 

PROPOSAL TERMS & CONDITIONS: Vendors are cautioned to read the information contained in 

this RFP carefully and to submit a complete response to all requirements and questions. All descriptions 

and prices shall be furnished in a legible manner so there is no uncertainty as to the intent or scope of 

your proposal.  

Where forms are provided, all spaces and the requested information are to be fully completed. All prices 

must be clearly set forth. In case of a conflict regarding unit price, the work amount shall prevail over 

figures contained in the proposal. Erasures or other changes in the proposal shall bear the signature or 

initials of the authorized signature for the vendor.  
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STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

The following terms and conditions are applicable to all vendors responding to sealed proposal RFP 

2022.04 Website Content Management System. 

 

Quantities Listed in Specifications 

The quantities of each item listed in the attached specifications are approximations only; more or less than 

the quantity stated may be purchased based on actual requirements and budget availability. Items within 

this sealed proposal will be ordered on an as needed basis throughout the life of this contract. The 

ordering department will determine the quantity required and when they will be purchased during the 

academic year. The College will only be responsible for payment of those items actually purchased and 

received on a valid, signed purchase order. 

 

A percentage discount off the manufacturer’s list price is required for items not specifically listed in the 

proposal specifications. This information is to be provided at the end of each product category in the item 

specifications. 

 

In accordance with applicable law, the College is not obligated to purchase any products and/or services 

in the event that the State of Texas or the Brazosport College Board of Trustees does not allocate funds. 

 

Interpretations of the Specifications 

Only interpretations or corrections to the specifications provided in writing by the Brazosport College 

Procurement Specialist or Brazosport College Director of Marketing and Communications shall be 

binding. Prospective vendors are advised that no other source is authorized to provide information 

concerning, or explain or interpret, the proposal documents. 

 

All requests for such interpretation or correction must be in writing addressed to Purchasing Department, 

Brazosport College, 500 College Drive, Lake Jackson, Texas 77566 or by email: 

cara.green@brazosport.edu or by fax to (979) 230-3344. All such interpretations and supplemental 

instructions will be provided via email to the requesting vendor(s) in the form of written addenda to the 

proposal documents prior to the proposal opening.  

 

Vendor Obligations 

Vendor proposal documentation must be received by the Brazosport College Purchasing Department prior 

to the 2:00 p.m. proposal deadline. In addition to the completed proposal specifications, a company 

officer or representative attesting to acknowledgment, understanding, and compliance with all applicable 

terms, conditions, and requirements, must sign all required proposal documentation. The individual 

signing the documentation must have the authority to commit and obligate the company for all terms and 

conditions as stated. 

 

Reference numbers indicating specific brand names, manufacturer numbers, or vendor catalog or part 

numbers may accompany item descriptions in the proposal specifications to further clarify the exact 

product required. Vendors may propose “equivalent” items in their proposal that must meet or exceed the 

original specifications; however, the actual brand and vendor catalog number must be indicated beside 

“Brand name and number proposed” and complete descriptive literature or product sample must be 

provided with the proposal. Brazosport College personnel will be the sole judge regarding the 

acceptability and approval of “equivalent” items that deviate from the specifications stated. Proposals for 
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“equivalent” items that are not supported by documentation or samples to allow adequate evaluation will 

be rejected as non-responsive.  

 

Substitutions will not be allowed after the proposal has been submitted. The vendor will not substitute a 

like item for any quoted item listed in its proposal without the prior written consent of the College.  

 

Unauthorized substitution, failure of a delivered item to perform as specified or expected, or failure to 

meet the expected delivery schedule shall release the College from all obligations to the vendor regarding 

the item(s) involved. 

 

Any requests for clarification of item specifications or requests to deviate from specifications must be 

submitted in writing to the Brazosport College Purchasing Department at least seven (7) business days 

prior to the proposal opening. 

 

Vendors and their representatives are prohibited from contacting either in person, by telephone or via fax 

or email, instructional or maintenance personnel during this time of RFP process without approval from 

the Vice President of Financial Services and CFO or the Purchasing Department. 

 

All hazardous material (HAZMAT) items must be identified by the vendor on the proposal 

submittal by indicating “HAZARDOUS” on each appropriate line item.  

 

Any quantity or prompt-pay discounts must be listed on the proposal documentation and invoices. 

 

The vendor at no cost to the College will promptly replace any item that does not perform as specified or 

fails to meet standards.  

 

It is understood and agreed that pricing, delivery and/or installation dates after receipt of a purchase order 

will not vary from the information provided by the vendor’s proposal to the College. In its evaluation or 

acceptance of any proposed offer, the College is relying on the promised pricing, delivery and/or 

installation dates as material and basic to its acceptance of any particular offer unless otherwise stated. In 

the event that the vendor fails to deliver item(s) as and when promised, the College reserves the right to 

cancel its order entirely or any part thereof and may return all or any part of any shipment so made. The 

College may charge the vendor for any cost or loss incurred as a result of such failure to deliver as 

promised, including any additional cost associated with procurement of items from other vendors. 

 

Vendor must provide all information requested for each item in the proposed specifications. Information 

is to be provided in the spaces provided. Proposal offers lacking full documentation will not be given 

consideration and will be considered non-responsive. 

 

All proposal documentation must be complete and signed by an appropriate, authorized company officer 

or representative to be considered. 

 

College Obligations 

The College reserves the right to separate and accept and/or eliminate any item(s) listed in this proposal 

that it deems necessary to accommodate budgetary and/or operational requirements. 

 

The College reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals submitted, to waive any formalities or 
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technicalities, and to make whatever award it deems to be in the best interest of the College. 

 

Under section 44.031 of the Texas Education Code when determining what the best value is, Brazosport 

College shall consider (reference Texas Education Code, SEC 44.031(b)). 

 

o The purchase price 

o The reputation of the vendor and of the vendor’s goods or services 

o The quality of the vendor’s goods or services 

o The extent to which the goods or services meet the College’s needs 

o The vendor’s past relationship with the College 

o The impact on the ability of the College to comply with laws and rules relating to 

historically under-utilized businesses 

o The total long-term cost to the College to acquire the vendor’s goods or services 

o For contract for goods and services, other than goods and services related to 

telecommunications and information services, building construction and maintenance, or 

instructional materials, whether the vendor or the vendor’s ultimate parent company or 

majority owner: 

▪ Has its principal place of business in the state of Texas; or  

▪ Employs at least 500 persons in the state of Texas 

o Any other relevant factor specifically listed in the request for bids or proposals.  

 

State of Texas Law Requirement 

The following information is included in the terms and conditions of all proposals in accordance with 

applicable Texas law. Each vendor must respond to this section as a requirement of the law. On May 30, 

1995, Senate Bill 1 was signed by Governor George Bush and made effective as follows: 

 

Senate Bill 1, section 44.034, Notification of Criminal History of Contractor 

(a) A person or business entity that enters into a contract with a school district must give advance notice 

to the district if the person or an owner or operator of the business entity has been convicted of a 

felony. 

(b) A school district may terminate a contract with a person or business entity if the district determines 

that the person or business entity failed to give notice as required by Subsection (a) or misrepresented 

the conduct resulting in the conviction. The district must compensate the person or business entity for 

services performed before termination of the contract. 

(c) This section does not apply to a publicly held corporation. 

 

Note: Completed form must be attached to RFP when submitted. Form is available at: 

http://brazosport.edu/faculty-and-staff/employee-services/business-services/purchasing/ 

 

State of Texas Government Codes 

State of Texas Government Code 2270 (HB 89) prohibits governmental entities from contracting with 

companies who boycott Israel. The District will review Texas Comptroller website list of companies 

known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services to a foreign terrorist organization. 

 

State of Texas Government Code 2252 Contracting with Governmental Entities prohibits governmental 

entities from contracting with Iran, Sudan, or any known terrorist organization. The District will review 

Texas Comptroller website list of companies known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

http://brazosport.edu/faculty-and-staff/employee-services/business-services/purchasing/
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services to a foreign terrorist organization 

 

Note: Completed form must be attached to RFP when submitted. Form is included in RFP. 

 

Debarment 

Any proposer or any principals of a proposing company that are presently debarred, suspended, 

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any 

Federal or State Government entity shall be considered ineligible to be awarded a contract by Brazosport 

College.  

 

Conflict of Interest 

The following information is included in the terms and conditions of all proposals in accordance with 

applicable State of Texas Government Code Chapter 176: 

 

On May 23, 2005, the Texas Senate passed House Bill No. 914, adding Chapter 176 to the Local 

Government Code, and imposing new disclosure and reporting obligations on vendors and potential 

vendors to local government entities beginning January 1, 2006.  Vendors doing business with Brazosport 

College are subject to Chapter 176 found in the Local Government Code.  Failure to abide by these new 

statutory requirements can result in possible criminal penalties as a Class C misdemeanor. 

 

(a) An individual or business entity that contracts or seeks to contract for the sale or purchase 

of property, goods, or services with the College must complete and submit a CIQ 

(Conflict of Interest Questionnaire).  

(b) The CIQ form must be filed within seven days of beginning contract negotiations, or 

submitting an application, bid, response to a request for proposal, correspondence, or 

other writing related to a potential agreement with the College.   

(c) Upon completion, CIQ forms should be returned to Brazosport College, Purchasing 

Department, 500 College Drive, Lake Jackson, TX 77566. 

 

State of Texas Government Code 2252.908 

Brazosport College is required to comply with House Bill 1295, which amended the Texas Government 

Code by adding Section 2252.9018, Disclosure of Interested Parties. Section 2252.908 prohibits 

Brazosport College from entering into a contract resulting from this sealed bid/proposal with a business 

entity unless the business entity submits a Disclosure of Interested Parties (Form 1295) to Brazosport 

College at the time the business entity submits the signed bid/proposal/contract.  The Texas Ethics 

Commission has adopted rules requiring the business entity to file Form 1295 electronically with the 

Texas Ethics Commission. The following definitions apply: 

 

(1) “Business Entity” means an entity recognized by law through which business is conducted, 

including a sole proprietorship, partnership, or corporation. TEX. GOV’T CODE § 2252.908(1). 

 

(2) “Interested Party” means a person: a) who has a controlling interest in a business entity with 

whom Brazosport College contracts; or b) who actively participates in facilitating the contract or 

negotiating the terms of the contract, including a broker, intermediary, adviser, or attorney for the 

business entity. TEX. GOV’T CODE § 2252.908(3). 

 

(3) “Controlling interest” means: a) an ownership interest or participating interest in a business 
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entity by virtue of units, percentage, shares, stock, or otherwise that exceeds 10 percent; b) 

membership on the board of directors or other governing body of a business entity of which the 

board or other governing body is composed of not more than 10 members; or c) service as an 

officer of a business entity that has four or fewer officers, or service as one of the four officers 

most highly compensated by a business entity that has more than four officers. TEX. ETHICS 

COMM. RULE 46.3(c). 

 

(4) “Intermediary” means a person who actively participates in the facilitation of the contract or 

negotiating the contract, including a broker, adviser, attorney, or representative of or agent for the 

business entity who:  a) receives compensation from the business entity for the person’s 

participation; b) communicates directly with the governmental entity or state agency on behalf of 

the business entity regarding the contract; and c) is not an employee of the business entity. TEX. 

ETHICS COMM. RULE 46.3(e). 

 

As a “business entity”, all vendors must:  Complete Form 1295 electronically with the Texas Ethics 

Commission using the online filing application, which can be found at: 

 https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm  or on the College’s website at: 

http://brazosport.edu/faculty-and-staff/employee-services/business-services/purchasing/  

 

- All vendors must complete Form 1295, even if no interested parties exist 

- In Section 2, insert “Brazosport College” 

- In Section 3, insert the “Brazosport College Sealed Proposal RFP 2022.04” for this sealed 

proposal 

 

Brazosport College must acknowledge the receipt of the filed Form 1295 by notifying the Texas Ethics 

Commission of the receipt of the filed Form 1295 no later than the 30th day after the Board of Trustees 

approved award date that the contract binds all parties to the contract. After Brazosport College 

acknowledges the Form 1295, the Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its 

website within seven business days after receiving notice from Brazosport College. 

 

The Conflict of Interest Questionnaire Form 1295, that your company received from the either the Texas 

Ethics Commission or the College’s website, must be signed, notarized, and mailed to: 

Cara Green, Procurement Specialist 

Brazosport College 

500 College Drive 

Lake Jackson, TX 77566 

 

The deadline for receiving the completed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire is on or before August 5, 

2021 at 2:00 p.m. 

 

Awarded contractor will be responsible for complying with Texas Government Code 2252.908 in regards 

to House Bill 1295 relating to the disclosure of research, research sponsors, and interested parties by 

persons contracting with governmental entities and state agencies, which applies to a contract entered into 

on or after January 1, 2016.  A governmental entity or state agency may not enter into a contract with a 

business entity unless the business entity submits a disclosure of interested parties to the governmental 

entity or state agency at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental 

entity or state agency.  

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm
http://brazosport.edu/faculty-and-staff/employee-services/business-services/purchasing/
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Open Records Act 

The Public Information Act, formerly known as the Open Records Act, is located at chapter 552 of the 

Government Code. Any information collected, assembled, or maintained by or for Brazosport College is 

subject to the Public Information Act.  Brazosport College is required to release information that is not 

confidential by law. Confidential (non-releasable) information includes social security numbers, e-mail 

addresses and reference statements. Non-confidential (releasable) information includes addresses, dates of 

birth, phone numbers, branches, and employment information. 

 

General Conditions 

Vendors are notified that although the College is required to submit purchases of $50,000 or greater to 

competitive bidding or proposals, it is not required to accept the lowest proposal. In such purchasing, the 

lowest proposal may be rejected if the Brazosport College Board of Trustees, in the exercise of its best 

judgment, feels that the proposal of a vendor other than the lowest proposer will best serve the interest of 

the College by providing the best value.  The College shall consider the price; reputation of the vendor 

and the vendor’s goods or services; the quality of the goods or services; the extent to which the goods or 

services meet the College’s needs; the vendor’s past relationship with the College; the long term cost to 

the College to acquire the vendor’s goods or services; and any other relevant factor specifically listed in 

the request for pricing. 

 

Brazosport College reserves the right to accept or reject any and/or all proposals by item or in its entirety 

and to waive all technicalities. This inquiry implies no obligation on the part of the buyer, nor does the 

buyer’s silence imply any acceptance or rejection of any proposal offer. 

 

Price Quotations 

Proposal prices may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 days after the proposal opening date. 

 

Proposal unit price based on quantity specified. If unable to propose the specified product (i.e., brand, 

manufacturer, model, etc.), the actual product proposed as “equivalent” must be specified. Vendor must 

provide complete descriptive literature and/or samples of all proposed “equivalent” products. Appropriate 

College personnel will be the sole judge regarding the acceptability of any items proposed as “equivalent” 

by the vendor.  

 

Delivery, Freight, Shipping and Handling costs must be included in unit price for all items.  

Additional charges such as hazardous material fees, fuel surcharges, special packaging fees, etc. are 

to be provided on the Vendor Information form. 

 

Proposing by complete packages as organized in the item specifications is preferred; however, proposals 

may be awarded on one or all items listed. The College reserves the right to purchase items as a group 

from one vendor or individually from different vendors. 

 

Applicable Texas law requires that businesses operating outside the State of Texas give a percentage cost 

added to a proposal, if the state will reciprocate a percentage increase in a Texas proposal. This 

information is to be provided on the Vendor Information form. 

 

All products must be proposed as requested on the attached pages. Proposals not quoted in the manner 

requested will be considered non-responsive. 
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Price Guarantees 

The College requests that proposal prices remain effective for the period beginning August 5, 2021 and 

ending October 31, 2021. Proposals extended beyond August 5, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. may not be accepted. 

Exceptions to this provision will require the specific written approval of the Purchasing Department.   

 

Warranties 

Detailed documentation of all warranties must be provided with each vendor’s bid. 

 

Proposal Delivery 

Proposals may be mailed or delivered by courier or hand delivered by a vendor representative. Regardless 

of delivery method, the proposal must be received by the Brazosport College Purchasing Department, 500 

College Drive, Room C127, Lake Jackson, TX 77566 prior to the proposal deadline. Proposals received 

after the deadline will not be opened, read, evaluated, or recorded; and will be returned to the vendor 

unopened.  

 

All proposals must be received in a sealed envelope with the Brazosport College proposal number 

RFP 2022.04 Website Content Management System identified on the front, bottom left hand 

corner.  Therefore, email or fax transmittal of proposals will not be accepted under any circumstances.  

 

Force Majeure  

Force Majeure means a delay may be encountered by a party in the performance of its obligations under 

this agreement, which is caused by an event beyond the reasonable control of that party. Without limiting 

the generality of the foregoing, “Force Majeure” shall include but not be restricted to the following types 

of events: acts of God or public enemy; acts of governmental or regulatory authorities; fires, floods, 

epidemics, or serious accidents; unusually server weather conditions; strikes, lockouts, or other labor 

disputes; and defaults by subcontractors. In the event of Force Majeure, the affected party shall not be 

deemed to have violated its obligations under this agreement, and the time for performance of any 

obligations of that party shall be extended by a period of time necessary to overcome the effects of the 

Force Majeure, proved that the foregoing shall not prevent this agreement from terminating in accordance 

with the termination provisions.  If any event constituting a Force Majeure occurs, the affected party shall 

notify the other parties in writing, within twenty-four (24) hours, and disclose the estimated length of 

delay, and cause of the delay.  Should a proposal deadline be compromised due to inclement weather or 

other situation where Brazosport College offices are closed, proposals will be accepted the next open 

business day at the same time as the originally scheduled proposal opening.   

 

Awarding the Proposal 

The successful vendor will be selected based on the criteria listed above in the paragraph entitled 

“College Obligations”. 

 

The College prefers to award by total package or aggregate cost, whichever it deems is in the best interest 

of the College; however, proposal on complete packages is not required. The College reserves the right to 

group items or packages for award purposes. 

 

The College reserves the right to award to multiple or single vendors. If the vendor does not wish the 

proposal submitted to be split, it must specify “all or nothing” on the proposal document. 
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Following the contract award, additional products of the same general category that could have been 

encompassed in the award of this contract and are not already on the contract, may be added.  

 

Vendor of Record 

Once the successful vendor has been qualified by the criteria mentioned; this vendor will become the 

“vendor of record” for the individual items awarded or for the complete package in the event that the 

proposal is awarded aggregately for all items in the package. 

 

The vendor of record is defined as the sole supplier to the College of the item(s) awarded. 

 

Purchase Orders 

All orders will be initiated by a Brazosport College purchase order. A valid, numbered purchase order 

will be mailed, emailed, or faxed to the vendor by the Brazosport College Purchasing Department. Orders 

will not be placed by telephone, except in emergency circumstances. 

 

Brazosport College will not be responsible for any goods delivered or services performed without its valid 

purchase order signed by an authorized representative. 

 

Authorized Brazosport College Purchasing Department personnel will notify the vendor of all 

adjustments and cancellations to any purchase order. 

 

Tax Exemption 

Brazosport College is exempt from federal excise taxes as well as all state and local sales taxes. These 

taxes are not to be included in the proposal nor on any invoices for goods or services. If taxes are included 

in the vendor proposal, it will not be included in the evaluation or award. Tax exemption certificates shall 

be furnished upon request. 

 

Delivery Expectations 

All deliveries must be FOB, Brazosport College, 500 College Drive, Lake Jackson, Texas 77566.  

 

Shipments are to be delivered to the receiving department during normal hours of operation or to another 

location as specified by the College. Normal operating hours are Monday through Thursday from 8:00 am 

until 5:00 pm and Friday 8:00 am until 11:00 am, excluding College holidays. 

 

The normal number of days after receipt of purchase order that delivery should be expected must be 

specified on the proposal for each product category in the item specifications. The vendor must notify 

the Brazosport College Purchasing Department in the event that product delivery will be delayed beyond 

the time period specified. 

 

All shipments must be accompanied by a packing list or other similar documentation. Documentation 

must include the vendor name, an itemized list of the items and quantities, and the Brazosport College 

purchase order number. 

 

Inspection, Rejection and Excess Shipment 

(a) In addition to other rights provided by law, the College reserves the right  

(b) to inspect articles delivered and to return those that do not meet specifications or reasonable 

standards of quality, 
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(c) to reject articles shipped contrary to instruction or in containers that do not meet recognized 

standards and  

(d) to cancel the order if not filled within the time specified.  The College may return rejected articles 

or excess shipment on the order , or may hold the articles subject to the vendor’s order and at 

their risk and expense and may in either event charge the vendor with the cost of shipping, 

unpacking, inspecting, repacking, reshipping, and other like expense.  

 

Complaint and Dispute Resolutions 

The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260, State of Texas Gov’t Code must be used by 

Brazosport College and the proposer to attempt to resolve any dispute arising under any contract resulting 

from this sealed proposal.  

 

• Written notification, including list of complaints shall be in writing to all parties via email or 

USPS mail within five business days from receipt of items ordered.  

 

• Negotiation and mediation must begin no later than the 30th day after the date the claim is 

received in an effort to resolve the dispute. 

 

Insurance Requirements 

The selected vendor will be required to supply an insurance certificate naming the College as an 

additional insured if services are performed on site.  

 

• Commercial General Liability- $1,000,000 bodily injury, $1,000,000 property damage. 

• Automobile Liability- $1,000,000 bodily injury, $1,000,000 property damage. 

• Worker Compensation- Each accident- $1,000,000, disease policy limit- $1,000,000, disease each 

employee- $1,000,000.   

 

The insurance requirements also apply to any sub-contractor(s) in the event that any work is sublet.  The 

vendor is responsible to insure that the sub-contractors meet the minimum insurance requirement limits 

according to the law.   

 

Should any of the policies be canceled before the expiration date, the issuing company will mail thirty 

(30) days written notice to the certificate holder, Brazosport College. 

 

The vendor shall be required to waive all right of subrogation against the College, its officials, employees, 

and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by vendor. 

 

The vendor shall be required to hold the College harmless from, and indemnify it  against, all 

liability, including attorney’s fees, which may arise from and accrue directly from the performance of the 

work or any obligation of the vendor or failure of the vendor to perform any work or obligation provided 

for in this agreement. 

 

Invoice and Payment Terms 

Vendor must submit invoices for each purchase order after receipt of goods and/or services. Invoices must 

be itemized, indicate the Brazosport College purchase order number, and any additional charges (i.e., 

hazardous material fees, fuel surcharges, etc.) must be listed separately.  
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The vendor must identify all items requiring a hazardous material fee at the time of proposal 

submittal in order for hazardous material fees to be paid by Brazosport College.   

 

Invoices without reference to the purchase order may delay payment to the vendor.  Invoices should be 

emailed to accounts.payable@brazosport.edu or mailed to the Accounts Payable Department, Brazosport 

College, 500 College Drive, Lake Jackson, Texas 77566.  

 

Upon receipt of a properly executed invoice, verification, and approval of delivery from the ordering 

department, payment will be processed net 30 days from invoice date for items or services delivered.  

Unless otherwise stated on the invoice.  

 

Vendor should inform the Brazosport College Accounts Payable Department of any changes involving 

the remittance address. 

 

Purchase of awarded proposal items is based solely on availability of current budgeted funds and actual 

requirements. Any or all items awarded as a result of the proposal process may not be purchased if 

budgeted funds are not available. Brazosport College will only be responsible for payment of items 

actually ordered by a valid, signed purchase order and receipt of the correct item(s). 

 

Where to Ask Questions 

 

Brazosport College 

Cara Green, Procurement Specialist 

E-mail:  Cara.Green@brazosport.edu 

 

 

 

mailto:accounts.payable@brazosport.edu

